          1

          2  CITY COUNCIL

          3

             CITY OF NEW YORK

          4

             -------------------------------x

          5

             THE TRANSCRIPT OF THE MINUTES

          6

                       of the

          7

             SUBCOMMITTEE ON LANDMARKS, PUBLIC

          8  SITING and MARITIME USES

          9

             -------------------------------x

         10

         11                 August 15, 2005

                            Start:  11:05 a.m.

         12                 Recess: 11:21 a.m.

         13                 City Hall

                            Committee Room

         14                 New York, New York

         15

                  B E F O R E:

         16

                         SIMCHA FELDER

         17                                Chairperson,

         18

                         COUNCIL MEMBERS:   Bill Perkins

         19                                 Charles Barron

                                            Leroy Comrie

         20                                 Oliver Koppell

                                            Annabel Palma

         21                                 James Oddo

         22

         23

         24       LEGAL-EASE COURT REPORTING SERVICES, INC.

                         17 Battery Place -  Suite 1308

         25              New York, New York 10004

                              (800) 756-3410

                                                            2

          1

          2  A P P E A R A N C E S

          3

             Simeon Bankoff

          4  Executive Director

             Historic Districts Council

          5

             Diane Jackier

          6  Director, Community and Government Affairs

             Landmarks Preservation Commission

          7

          8

          9

         10

         11

         12

         13

         14

         15

         16

         17

         18

         19

         20

         21

         22

         23

         24

         25

                                                            3

          1  LANDMARKS, PUBLIC SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Good morning.

          3  Okay, good morning. Okay, LU No. 534. Queens

          4  Community Board 9. 20055612 HKQ. N050478 HKQ.

          5  Designation list No. 363 LP-2175 by the Landmarks

          6  Preservation Commission, pursuant to Section 3020 of

          7  the New York City Charter of the Ralph Bunche House

          8  generally located at 115-24 Grosvenor Street, Block

          9  3319, Lot 18.

         10                 For the record, for my colleagues,

         11  this item we're going to hear today, but we are not

         12  voting on today.

         13                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: We don't have

         14  Landmarks here either.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: We don't have

         16  Landmarks?  Oh, that's good. I hope they're enjoying

         17  the beach.

         18                 LU No. 535. Manhattan Community Board

         19  6. 20055613 HKM. N050479 HKM. Designation List No.

         20  363, LP-2176 by the Landmarks Preservation

         21  Commission pursuant to Section 3020 of the New York

         22  City Charter of the Summit Hotel (now Doubletree

         23  Metropolitan Hotel) generally located at 569-573

         24  Lexington Avenue, also known as 132-166 East 51st

         25  Street, Block 1305, Lot 50.
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          2                 And finally, Brooklyn Community- 1.

          3  20055634 HKK. N050514 HKK. You know, I was just

          4  wondering, what would happen if I just kept going

          5  on, HKK050146747305670 HKK. I mean, for Heaven sake,

          6  this is like bizarre, this whole thing.

          7                 I think somebody is having a good

          8  time with us downstairs in the basement making up

          9  these numbers.

         10                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: No, these

         11  numbers are real. They're real numbers.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Okay. Whatever.

         13                 Designation List 365, LP-2161 by the

         14  Landmarks Preservation Commission pursuant to

         15  Section 3020 of the New York City Charter of the

         16  Smith, Gray & Company Building located at 103

         17  Broadway, Block 2471, Lot 8.

         18                 Again, I just want to mention for my

         19  colleagues that the first item, the item which is

         20  the Bunche House, located in Queens Community

         21  Board-9 is being laid over. We are not voting on it

         22  today. We're having a hearing on it today.

         23                 Having said that, and since no one is

         24  here from the Landmarks Commission, we will call on

         25  Simeon Bankoff to speak.
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          2                 MR. BANKOFF: Good morning, Council

          3  members. Am I speaking on the first one? The second

          4  one? All of them?

          5                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Speak on all of

          6  them.

          7                 MR. BANKOFF: Okay.

          8                 I would like to actually request the

          9  Council's permission, if we do come back to the

         10  Bunche House, to have a chance to talk about it at a

         11  future hearing, because I understand that there are

         12  some concerns that I would like to address. But I've

         13  only heard about these concerns, and I would like to

         14  be able to address them more adequately in the

         15  future, if that would be possible.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: You can talk

         17  about it now.

         18                 MR. BANKOFF: Uh-huh.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Maybe you can

         20  talk about it later.

         21                 MR. BANKOFF: Okay.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: You're not

         23  talking about it twice.

         24                 MR. BANKOFF: All right.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: So you have to
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          2  decide.

          3                 MR. BANKOFF: In that case, I will

          4  simply state for the record, my name is Simeon

          5  Bankoff, Executive Director of the Historic

          6  Districts Council.

          7                 HDC is the Citywide advocate for New

          8  York's historic neighborhoods, and for neighborhoods

          9  meriting preservation.

         10                 We also often weigh in on individual

         11  structures. It is my pleasure to support the

         12  designation of the Summit Hotel, as well as the

         13  Smith's Iron Building, 103 Broadway in Williamsburg.

         14                 We welcome these designations. We

         15  particularly welcome the Landmarks Commission's

         16  recent actions on modern landmarks, such as the

         17  Summit, as well as long overdue designation activity

         18  within Williamsburg, which has recently undergone a

         19  major rezoning, and there are a number of buildings

         20  there within the Williamsburg Greenpoint area that

         21  are meritorious of designation, and we look forward

         22  to seeing further action there.

         23                 Thank you very much.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Are we talking

         25  about the two other items?
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Yes. In fact, we

          3  have somebody from Landmarks Preservation who is

          4  here 15 minutes late, but we will let them speak

          5  anyway.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: After the others.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Just a

          9  curiosity as to why the first one was laid over?

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: The Council

         11  Member represents that area, Melinda Katz, had some

         12  last minute inquiries by the owner, as well as some

         13  other people in the neighborhood and asked if we

         14  would lay it over. So, at first I said no. I would

         15  like to do anything to aggravate you. But then I

         16  said, you know what? We'll lay it over.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: How is that?

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: That's a good

         20  answer.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Excellent.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: As usual, Mr.

         23  Chair.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Alex Herrera,

         25  from New York Landmarks Conservancy.
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          2                 Okay, thank you very much. And I

          3  apologize for having you come. There was no way that

          4  we can -- the delay was issued today. If I had known

          5  about it earlier, we would have delayed maybe the

          6  entire meeting. So, I apologize.

          7                 Diane Jackier, from Landmarks

          8  Preservation Commission. Just for your interest, the

          9  item on the Bunche House you don't have to talk

         10  about today, unless you'd like to.

         11                 MS. JACKIER: Good morning, Council

         12  Members. My name is Diane Jackier, Director of

         13  Community and Government Affairs for the Landmarks

         14  Preservation Commission. I'm here today to testify

         15  on the Commission's designation of the Summit Hotel

         16  in Manhattan as a New York City landmark.

         17                 On March 29th, 2005, the Landmarks

         18  Commission held a public hearing on the proposed

         19  designation. Twelve people spoke in favor, including

         20  representatives of the Landmarks Conservancy, the

         21  Historic Districts Council, Docomomo-US, Friends of

         22  the Upper East Side, the Modern Architecture Working

         23  Group, Landmark West, and the Municipal Arts

         24  Society.

         25                 The Commission also received a letter
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          2  of support from Community Board 6 in Manhattan, in

          3  addition to numerous other letters and e-mails in

          4  support of designation. The owner testified at this

          5  time, taking no position on designation.

          6                 When the hearing was continued on

          7  April 21st, 2005, three people testified in favor,

          8  including representatives of the Modern

          9  Architectural Working Group, and Docomomo-US.

         10                 A commission -- representative of the

         11  owner testified taking no position. On May 17th,

         12  2005, the Commission voted to designate the building

         13  a New York City landmark.

         14                 Admired for its unusual shape, color

         15  and stainless steel sign, the Summit Hotel is an

         16  important work by architect Morris Lapidus.

         17                 Begun in 1959, it was the first hotel

         18  built in Manhattan in three decades, and the

         19  architect's first hotel in New York City.

         20                 Trained at Columbia University,

         21  Lapidus enjoyed considerable success as a retail

         22  designer in the 1930s. After the Second World War,

         23  he began to design hotels, including the celebrated

         24  Fontainbleau and Eden Roc in Miami Beach. These

         25  accomplishments led to his association with the
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          2  Tisch family, who commissioned the Summit Hotel.

          3                 Built in reinforced concrete, a

          4  material favored for its sculptural potential, the

          5  curving north and south elevations are clad in light

          6  green blazed brick and dark green mosaic tile

          7  manufactured in Italy.

          8                 The top three stories, built as

          9  penthouse suites, are faced in green structural

         10  glass. To further distinguish the building from its

         11  neighbors, the door handles were inlaid with

         12  colorful mosaics and the base along East 51st Street

         13  is illuminated by globe-shaped lighting fixtures.

         14                 On Lexington Avenue, Lapidus designed

         15  a striking illuminated sign. Consisting of seven

         16  disks hung between stainless steel pins, this unique

         17  element enhanced the hotel's street presence, making

         18  it visible from a distance.

         19                 When the hotel opened in 1961, it

         20  generated considerable media attention and received

         21  mixed reviews. In subsequent years, however, the

         22  hotel attracted an increasing number of admirers and

         23  aside from alterations to the Lexington Avenue

         24  entrance, this flamboyant modern structure retains

         25  most of its original character.
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          2                 The Commission urges you to affirm

          3  the designation of the Summit Hotel.

          4                 And then I have one more that I'll

          5  talk about, 103 Broadway in Brooklyn.

          6                 On January 18th, 2005, the Landmarks

          7  Commission held a public hearing on the proposed

          8  designation of the Smith, Gray & Company Building at

          9  103 Broadway in Brooklyn.

         10                 Five people spoke in favor, including

         11  representatives of Metropolitan Chapter of the

         12  Victorian Society in America, the Municipal Arts

         13  Society, the Landmarks Conservancy, and the Historic

         14  Districts Council. There were no speakers in

         15  opposition.

         16                 On June 7, 2005, the Commission voted

         17  to designate the building a New York City landmark.

         18                 The Smith and Gray Company Building,

         19  is an early, significantly intact, cast-iron-fronted

         20  store-and-loft building in Brooklyn.

         21                 The firm was founded by tailor Edward

         22  smith, who began his business in 1833 in lower

         23  Manhattan and pioneered in the profitable

         24  manufacture of ready-made clothes for children.

         25                 In 1864, he transferred the business

                                                            12

          1  LANDMARKS, PUBLIC SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2  to Williamsburg, Brooklyn, in partnership with Allen

          3  Gray, his brother-in-law.

          4                 This was their first new structure,

          5  constructed in 1870, on Williamsburg's then most

          6  important commercial street.

          7                 Designed by prominent Brooklyn

          8  Architect William H. Gaylor, the building is five

          9  stories high and 25 feet wide. Typical of cast iron

         10  designs in the Second Empire style, the building's

         11  main facade features tiered upper stories with

         12  segmental-arched fenestration framed by Corinthian

         13  columns and pilasters. The building's historic

         14  wooden storefront still survives.

         15                 Today, 103 Broadway remains an

         16  important reminder of Williamsburg's commercial

         17  emergence after the Civil War and of the

         18  nationally-important clothing manufacturer that was

         19  once Brooklyn's preeminent 19th Century commercial

         20  firms.

         21                 The Commission urges you to affirm

         22  the designation of the Smith, Gray & Company

         23  Building.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Do any of my

         25  colleagues have any questions?
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          2                 Councilman Comrie, I just want to

          3  introduce the other members who are here. Councilman

          4  Koppell, Councilman Perkins, Councilman Barron,

          5  Council Member Annabel Palma, and, again, Councilman

          6  Comrie, and Council Member James Oddo.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: I have a

          8  question.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: There's somebody

         10  first. I'm sorry.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay, good

         12  morning, Ms. Jackier.

         13                 MS. JACKIER: Good morning.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Did you get

         15  the -- I'm just trying to make sure I'm saying this

         16  correctly. But you have no designation from the

         17  building owner one way or the other on the Smith

         18  Gray Building, right?

         19                 MS. JACKIER: Right. We did not hear

         20  from them.

         21                 We had a meeting with them prior to

         22  calendaring the building, but subsequent to that, we

         23  notified them of the public hearing and they did not

         24  attend or express any of their views on designation.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: We have no
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          2  knowledge of community board or borough presidents'

          3  actions on that either.

          4                 Oh, we do now? Oh, okay, sorry.

          5                 And on the other building, the

          6  representative took no position you said, right?

          7                 MS. JACKIER: Yes.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: For the summit

          9  hotel.

         10                 And do we have, just for point of

         11  information, what the community board or the Borough

         12  President they did? They supported the designation

         13  for the Ralph Bunche house, okay.

         14                 I see the updated file now, so I

         15  guess I have to withdraw my question. It wasn't in

         16  our original package, the positions on the different

         17  people.

         18                 Whose community board -- I mean, what

         19  Council District is the Summit Hotel?

         20                 MS. JACKIER: The Summit Hotel is in

         21  Eva Moskowitz's district.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: And the Smith

         23  Gray?

         24                 MS. JACKIER: Is in Reyna's District.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay, thank
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          2  you. Thank you, Mr. Chair.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Council Member

          4  Koppell.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Yes. The

          6  implications of the designation of the Summit Hotel,

          7  is this just the exterior that's being landmarked?

          8                 MS. JACKIER: Yes. It's just the

          9  exterior.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: So they could

         11  renovate the inside and it wouldn't have any, they

         12  wouldn't have any obstacle to that, is that right?

         13                 MS. JACKIER: Right. It depends. If

         14  they were doing major structural work that would be

         15  demolishing some of the floor plates, that would go,

         16  they would get a staff permit from the Commission to

         17  do that, but this is just for the exterior of the

         18  building.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: And are there

         20  any procedures for, if you will, delandmarking, are

         21  there procedures that would allow the hotel to be

         22  demolished?

         23                 MS. JACKIER: They could go for a

         24  hardship if they did want to demolish it.

         25                 It's the same as with all the other
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          2  landmarks.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: I just want

          4  to understand the process.

          5                 MS. JACKIER: Right.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: It's not

          7  totally irrevocable. We don't want it demolished, I

          8  agree.

          9                 MS. JACKIER: Right.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: But I'm just

         11  curious.

         12                 MS. JACKIER: It's something that they

         13  could apply to the Commission to do so --

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: And they

         15  would have to show a hardship.

         16                 MS. JACKIER: -- And they would have

         17  to prove that it was a hardship to, you know, that

         18  they would need to demolish the building. It's a

         19  very rare occurrence.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Thank you for

         21  the clarification.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Thank you.

         23                 Do any other members here, any other

         24  colleagues have any questions?

         25                 Thank you very much. Thank you for
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          2  your testimony.

          3                 We are ready to vote. I recommend a

          4  vote yes on all.

          5                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Chair Avella --

          6  I'm sorry. Chair Felder.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Aye. Just one

          8  minute.

          9                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         10  Perkins.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Good to see

         12  you, Mr. Chairman.

         13                 How was your summer?

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Thank God well.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Thank God

         16  well.

         17                 I vote aye on all. And you and I have

         18  to talk.

         19                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         20  Barron.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Aye on all.

         22                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         23  Comrie.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Aye on both.

         25                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member
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          2  Koppell.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Aye.

          4                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

          5  Palma.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: Aye.

          7                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

          8  Oddo.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Yes.

         10                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: The vote stands

         11  at seven in the affirmative, none in the negative

         12  and no abstentions, referred to the full Land Use

         13  Committee. Thank you.

         14                 (Hearing concluded at 11:21 a.m.)

         15

         16

         17

         18

         19

         20

         21

         22

         23

         24

         25

                                                            19

          1

          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter and Notary Public in and for the

         11  State of New York, do hereby certify that the

         12  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         13  within proceeding.

         14                 I further certify that I am not

         15  related to any of the parties to this action by

         16  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         17  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         18                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         19  set my hand this 15th day of August 2005.

         20

         21

         22

         23

         24

                                   ---------------------

         25                          CINDY MILLELOT, CSR.

                                                            20

          1

          2             C E R T I F I C A T I O N

          3

          4

          5

          6

          7

          8

          9            I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified Shorthand

         10  Reporter and a Notary Public in and for the State of

         11  New York, do hereby certify the aforesaid to be a

         12  true and accurate copy of the transcription of the

         13  audio tapes of this hearing.

         14

         15

         16

         17

         18

         19

         20

         21

         22

         23

         24                 -----------------------

                              CINDY MILLELOT, CSR.

         25

